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g /& @ gferera 0.5%% 1.34% q.00 - -
T F U gfeera 5.9%% 19.90% 90,00 - -
99 | AT (CRR) EERIS 0.45% 0.5%% 0.09 - -
iz | e &1 T & Fe gfeera 2.50% 0.4%% - - -
92 i"ga; Ie:::st(\g;iegg;ia o fera 2.84% 5. 58% 0.0% . .
R0 | g% A . 9%¥,059,089 | 930,559,429 | 1¥3R$9¥50 (94949 590 -
9| & IR e 434,000 | Q434,000 | {434,000 | 4,434,000 -
R | T FHAR e e %9 3%.00 - -
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

Panauti, Kavrepalanchowk
Comparision of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statement of F/Y 2078/79

I ¥R

NRs. in 000"

As per q
S. . Unaudited A9 p.er Au.dlted Variance | Variance in Reasons for
Particulars . X Financial . .
N. Financial in Amount | Percentage Variance
Statement
Statement
Total Capital and o
1 liabilities (1.1 to 1.7) 2,257,197 2,201,284 55,913 2%
1.1 | Paid up capital 152,500 152,500 - 0%
1.2 | Reserve and surplus 19,147 11,561 7,585 40%
1.3 | Debenture and Bond - - -
1.4 | Borrowings 1,690,869 1,690,869 0) 0%
1.5 | Deposit (atb) 311,574 311,574 0) 0%
a.Domestic currency 311,574 311,574 0) 0%
b.Foreign currency -
Netted off with
1.6 | Income Tax Liability 4,746 - 4,746 100% Advance Tax (Other
Assets)
LLP netted off with
Loan, Accured
Interest Liability net
1.7 | Other liabilities 78,361 34,780 43,581 56% off with Accured
Interest Receivable &
Regrouping of
Figures
2 Total Assets (2.1 to 2.7) 2,257,197 2,201,284 55,913 2%
2.1 | Cash and Bank Balance 122,3% 122,400 (6) 0%
2 Money at call and short
' notice )
2.3 | Investments - - 0%
2.4 | Loans and Advances 2,075,682 2,044,445 31,237 2% Netted off with LLP
2.5 | Fixed Assets 21,688 21,673 15 0%
2.6 | Non Banking Assets -
Netted off with
Provision for Tax &
27 | Others Assets 37,434 12,767 U667 | 6w | Aecured Interest
Receivable net off
with Accured Interest
Liability
3 Profit and Loss Account -
3.1 | Interest Income 272,667 272,674 (6) 0%
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As per

As per Audited

3.12-3.13)

S. . Unaudited A Variance | Variance in Reasons for
Particulars . . Financial . .
N. Financial Statement in Amount | Percentage Variance
Statement
3.2 | Interest Expenses 182,376 182,371 5 0%
A. Net Interest Income o
(3.132) 90,292 90,303 11 0%
33 Fges,Commlsswn and i 26372 26372) 100% Rggrouplng of
Discount Figures
34 | Other Operating Income 38,377 - 38,377 100% R.e grouping of
Figures
35 Foreign Exchange i
| Gain/Loss (Net) . )
B.Total Operating o
Income (A.+3.3+3.4+3.5) 128,668 116,675 11,993 9%
3.6 | Staff Expenses 66,169 66,175 (6) 0%
3.7 | Other Operating Expenses 40,908 40,949 41) 0%
C.Operating Profit
Before Provision (B.-3.6- 21,591 9,550 12,040 56%
3.7)
35 | Provision for Possible 4012 4012 0) 0%
Losses
?;;?pmt‘“g Profit (C.- 17,579 5,539 12040 | 68%
Non Operating o
39 Income/Expenses(Net) i i ) 0%
3q0 | Write Back of Provision for i i i 0%
possible loss
E. Profit from Regular o
Activities (D.-3.943.10) 17,579 5539 12,040 1 68%
311 Extraordinary )
’ Income/Expenses(Net) i
F. Profit before Bonus o
and Taxes (E43.11) 17,579 5,539 12,040 68%
3.12 | Provision for Staff Bonus 1,758 554 1,204 68%
3.13 | Provision for Tax 4,746 1,495 3,251 68%
G. Net Profit/Loss (F.- 11,075 3,489 7,585 68%

%R | arfiier wfdee, Rowe/0wr
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K.J. & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Q@  Pulchowk, Lalitpur l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AVIYAN LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha
Limited ("Microfinance”) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022), the Statement of Profit or Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that
date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereafter referred to as "the Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Microfinance, as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022) and its financial performance, changes in equity,
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards with allowed
carveouts, comply with Company Act, 2063 and Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NSAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Microfinance in accordance with the Handbook of The Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of The Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in audit of the financial statements of current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be
the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:

Information Technology (IT) Sytem
The Information Technology of

the

Our audit approach regarding Information

l L. 01-5010510/512
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Microfinance involves a large number of IT
systems that are used to process and record

a large volume of transactions in the
Microfinance's activities.
As a result, Microfinance’s financial

accounting and recording procedure places a
significant level of reliance and rely on such IT
systems.

Technology of the Microfinance included:

We conducted the detail understating and

testing regarding the existing system via

enquiry, re-performance and inspection to the

extent of our knowledge.

a) Verification of Loans and Advances
impairment based on‘agingon a test check
basis. (8% o N

\ %
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Appropriate  IT general controls and
application controls are required to ensure
that such IT systems are able to process the
data, as required, completely, accurately and
consistently for reliable financial reporting.
Due to the importance of the impact of IT
systems and related control environment on
the Microfinance’s financial  reporting
process, we have identified testing of such IT
systems and related control environment as a
key audit matter.
The existing system has not been audited as
required.

b) Reviewed the reports generated by the
systems on a sample basis.

¢) Verified Interest Income and expense
booking for loans and deposits using the
Microfinance's System on test basis.

Loan Loss Provision

The main business of Microfinance is to
provide loans to its customers. As per the the
directives issued by the regulator
Microfinance should classify the loan and
advances on the basis of repayment status of

Our audit procedures consisted of review of
management assumption and classification of
loan and advances to check whether the loan
loss provision is made according to the
directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

the loan (i.e. principal and interest) and
provide adequate loan loss provision.

Emphasis of Matters

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to 3.13 (b)(ii) of Notes to the Financial Statements,
that for Gratuity, the liability to be recognized in the Statement of Financial Position is the present
value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets. The Microfinance accounts
for the liability for the gratuity as per the management calculation. Likewise, the company has
contributed @ 8.33% of the basic salary as per the provisions of existing bylaws of the organization.
The microfinance has computed provision and liabilities for Gratuity without considering Actuarial
valuation.

Likewise, the microfinance has computed provision and liabilities for leave without considering
Actuarial valuation.

Other Matters

Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited has also prepared separate financial statements in
accordance with the directive issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to Microfinance for the year ending Ashad
32, 2079 (16 July, 2022). We have issued separate audit report on 21™ March, 2023 to the
shareholders of Microfinance on such regulatory financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial and Auditor's Report Thereon

Microfinance’s Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Report, Report of the Board of
Directors and Chairman's statement but does not include the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 1o,report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial Statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Microfinance ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate Microfinance
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing Microfinance financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and tie reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on Microfinance ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause Microfinance to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements. including
be disclosures, and financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within Microfinance to express an opinion in the financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence; and where applicable,
related safeguards. 3 % \g)
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the
branch offices of Microfinance, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate
for the purpose of audit; the financial statements including statement of financial position, statement
of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of
cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have
been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act-2063,
and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Microfinance; and the accounts and
records of the Finance are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us in the course of our
audit, we observed that the loan has not been written off, the business of Microfinance was
conducted satisfactorily, and Microfinance transactions were found to be within the scope of its
authority. We did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the Board
of Directors or any employee or any office bearer of Microfinance has acted contrary to the provisions
of law or caused loss or damage to Microfinance or committed any misappropriation of the funds of
Microfinance.

Sijan Bohara, CA
(Partner)

K.J. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date; 21" March, 2023
Place: Lalitpur, Nepal

UDIN: 230419CA01677d687C
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As on 32 Ashadh 2079

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars Note July 15,2021 July 16, 2020

(July 16, 2022) { *F{estated : ( *r)tlestated )
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 122,399,926 217,456,362 11,565,765
Statutory Balance and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 - - -
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - - -
Loan and advances to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 2,067,149,820 1,5627,634,689 173,017,299
Investment Securities 4.8 - - -
Current Tax Assets 4.9 - 1,482,276 620
Investment Property 4.1 - - -
Property and Equipment 411 20,279,983 10,430,921 8,478,266
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 412 1,392,719 1,359,545 1,534,094
Deferred Tax Assets 413 1,195,680 990,406 23,767
Other Assets 414 31,975,387 36,972,893 241,943
Total Assets 2,244,393,515 1,796,327,092 194,861,754

As on Ashadh 31, 2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars Note AS °('_‘| Lﬁs';?hzgg'zz'm (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
v 1o, ) *Restated *Restated
Liabilities
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 415 1,690,868,923 1,430,441,581 34,403,229
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 416 - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 417 - - -
Deposit from Customers 418 311,574,394 149,664,966 13,863,970
Borrowings 4.19 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 364,349 - -
Provisions 4.20 - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 413 - - -
Other Liabilities 4.21 62,047,401 45,298,136 2,336,362
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - - -
Total Liabilities 2,064,855,067 1,625,404,683 50,603,561
Equity
Share capital 4.24 152,500,000 152,500,000 152,500,000
Share premium
Retained earnings 4.25 4,564,234 7,335,276 (8,968,583)
Reserves 4.25 22,474,214 11,087,133 726,776
Total Equity 179,538,448 170,922,409 144,258,193
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,244,393,515 1,796,327,092 194,861,754
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26
Net Assets value per share 118 112 95
Baburam Thapa Bhojraj Bhattrai Bharati Pathak Prabin Jha Keshav Thapa
Chiarman Director Director Independent Director Director

Roshan Kumar Adhikari Sujan Chaulagain

Director

Place: Panauti-04, Kavrepalanchowk
Date: 5th Chaitra, 2079

5O | arfier ufdeed, Rove/ 06

Chief Finance Officer

'CA Sijan Bohara

Partner

K.J. and Associates
Chartered Accountants

ST Tt fadier g fa7., wHid-, FTaver==is



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss
For Year ended 32 Ashadh 2079

For the Year ended
For the Year ended Ashadh 31, 2078

Particulars Note Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022) (July 15, 2021)

*Restated

Interest Income 4.27 285,531,691 131,717,166
Interest Expenses 4.28 182,371,213 45,941,499
Net Interest Income 103,160,478 85,775,668
Fees and Commission Income 4.29 26,372,252 33,248,271
Fees and Commission Expenses 4.30 - -
Net Fees and Commission Income 26,372,252 33,248,271
Net Interest, Fees and Commission Income 129,532,731 119,023,939
Net Trading Income 4.31 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 - -
Total Operating Income 129,532,731 119,023,939
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.33 4,011,651 28,754,651
Net Operating Income 125,521,080 90,269,288
Operating Expenses
Personnel Expenses 4.34 67,847,599 42,020,500
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 37,184,731 16,153,236
Depreciation and Amortization 4.36 3,764,495 2,167,976
Operating Profit 16,724,255 29,927,577
Non Operating Income 4.37 - -
Non Operating Expenses 4.38 - -
Profit Before Income Tax 16,724,255 29,927,577
Income Tax Expenses 4.39

Current Tax 8,217,569 4,230,000

Deferred Tax (205,274) (966,639)
Profit For the Year 8,711,959 26,664,216
Profit Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Financial Institution 8,711,959 26,664,216
Profit For the Year 8,711,959 26,664,216
Earnings per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share 5.71 17.48
Diluted Earnings Per Share 5.71 17.48

Baburam Thapa Bhojraj Bhattrai Bharati Pathak Prabin Jha Keshav Thapa
Chiarman Director Director Independent Director Director
Roshan Kumar Adhikari Sujan Chaulagain
Director Chief Finance Officer

Partner
K.J. and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Panauti-04, Kavrepalanchowk
Date: 5th Chaitra, 2079
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement Of Comphrehensive Income
For Year ended 32 Ashadh 2079

Particulars

For the Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

For the Year ended
Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income, net of tax

a. Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Gain/(Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at fair value
Gain/(Losses) on Revaluation

Acturial gain/(Losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b. Items that are or may be reclassified to profit and loss

Gain/(Loss) on cash flow hedge

Exchange gain /(losses) (arising from translating financial asset of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items

Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

8,711,959 26,664,216

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the period

8,711,959 26,664,216

a

BaburamThapa Bhojraj Bhattrai Bharati Pathak Prabin Keshav Thapa
Chiarman Director Director Independent Director Director
RoshanKumarAdhlkarl Sujan Chaulagain
Director Chief Finance Officer
CA Sijan Bohara
Partner
Place: Panauti-04, Kavrepalanchowk K.J. and Associates
Date: 5th Chaitra, 2079 Chartered
Accountants
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Statement of cash flows

For Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079

Particulars

For the Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)

For the Year ended
Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received

Fees and Other Income Received

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities
Interest Paid

Commission and Fees Paid

Cash Payment to Employees

Other Expenses Paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and
liabilities

(Increase) / Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placements with B/Fls

Other trading assets

Loans and advances to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase) / Decrease in operating liabilities
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Due to bank and financial institutions
Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipt from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment
Receipt from sale of property and equipment
Purchase of Intangible assets

Receipt from sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities
Receipt from isssue of shares

Dividend paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

*Restated
283,052,024 130,581,351
26,372,252 33,248,271
(66,018,692) (36,408,114)
(37,280,651) (16,153,236)
206,124,933 111,268,272

(543,526,782) (1,379,982,824)

4,997,506 (40,120,167)
(538,529,276) (1,420,102,991)
260,427,342 1,396,038,352
161,909,428 135,800,996
14,920,358 37,349,388
437,257,128 1,569,188,736
104,852,785 260,354,017

(6,370,944) (5,711,656)
98,481,841 254,642,361

(13,613,557) (4,120,630)
(33,174) 174,549
2,479,667 1,135,815

(11,167,064) (2,810,266)

(45,941,499)

(182,371,213)

Net cash from financing activities (182,371,213) (45,941,499)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (95,056,436) 205,890,596
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st Shrawan 217,456,361 11,565,765
Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on Cash & Cash Equivalents - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at Ashadh End 122,399,925 217,456,361
BaburamThapa Bhojraj Bhattrai Bharati Pathak Prabin Jha Keshav Thapa
Chiarman Director Director Independent Director Director
Roshan Kumar Adhikari Sujan Chaulagain
Director Chief Finance Officer
"CA Sijan Bohara
Partner

Place: Panauti-04, Kavrepalanchowk
Date: 5th Chaitra, 2079
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K.J. and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS
For Year ended 32nd Ashadh 2079
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars

For the Year ended
Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

For the Year ended
Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

Opening Balance

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:

a. General reserve

b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund

c. Capital redemption reserve

d. Corporate social responsibility fund

e. Employees’ training fund

f. Client Protection fund

h. Other

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regqulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)

c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+)
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwiill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+)

h. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)

i. Other

7,335,275.59
8,711,959

(8,968,582.74)
26,664,216
(1,742,392) (3,539,223)

(87,120)
(1,260,615)
(87,120)

5,534,713

(176,961)

(176,961)

22,771,071

(5,500,573)

(8,100,481)

(205,274)

(966,639)

Distributable profit or (loss)

4,564,234 7,335,276

Bharati Pathak
Director

Baburam Thapa
Chiarman

Bhojraj Bhattrai
Director

Sujan Chaulagain
Chief Finance Officer

Roshan Kumar Adhikari
Director

Place: Panauti-04, Kavrepalanchowk
Date: 5th Chaitra, 2079
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Prabin Jha
Independent Director

Keshav Thapa
Director

CA Sijan Bohara
Partner
K.J. and Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes to Statement of Financial Statements
4 Explanatory Notes
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows.

4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent

As on Ashadh 32, 2079 As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars July 15, 2021 July 16, 2020,
(July 16,2022) ( *}gestated ) ( *gestated :
-Cash in hand 2,567,091 1,263,446 525,605
-Balance with financial institution 119,832,835 216,192,916 11,040,160
-Money at call and short notice - - -
-Other cash and cash equivalent - - -
Total 122,399,926 217,456,362 11,565,765

4.2 Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
*Restated *Restated
-statutory balance with Nepal Rastra Bank - - -

-statutory balance with BFls
-securities purchased under resale agreement - - -
-other deposit and receivable from NRB - - R

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

Total - - -
4.3  Placements with Financial Instituitions
As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars As "(3 lﬁs';:d';g'zzz' 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
y 15, ) *Restated *Restated
-Placements
-with domestic B/Fls Nepal - - -
less: Allowances for impairment
4.4  Derivative Financial Instruments
As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Disposals As "(’J lﬁs':asdggzzz' 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
Yy 19, ) *Restated *Restated
Held for trading
-interest rate swap - - -
-currency swap - - -
-forward exchange contract - - -
-others - - -
Held for risk management
-Interest rate swap - - -
-Currency swap - - -
-forward exchange contract - - -
-others
Total - - -
4.5  Other Trading Assets
As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars As "(3 3“;?';:222' 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
Yy 19, ) *Restated *Restated
Teasury bills
Government bonds - - -
NRB Bonds - - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - - -
Equities - - -
Other - - -
Total - - -
Pledged - - -
Non-pledged - - -
Total - - -
4.6  Loan and advances to MFls & Cooperatives
As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars As "(3 lﬁs';?';:zzz' 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
Y19, ) *Restated *Restated
Loans to microfinance institutions - -
Loans to Fls
Loans to cooperative - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment Other
Less: Allowances for Impairment - - -
Total - - -
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4.7

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)

Balance at Shrawan 1

Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year

Recoveries/reversal

Amount written off

Balance at Ashadh end

Loans and Advances to Customers

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)

*Restated *Restated
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 2,098,386,756 1,554,859,973 174,877,150
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 2,098,386,756 1,554,859,973 174,877,150
Less: Allowances for Impairment
Collective impairment (15,042,548) (22,163,992) (1,859,851)
Individual impairment (16,194,388) (5,061,292) -
Net amount 2,067,149,820 1,527,634,689 173,017,299
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - - -
Total 2,067,149,820 1,527,634,689 173,017,299

4.7.1: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Product

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

As on Shrawan 01, 2077

perietrs (uty 16,2022 " Rostatoa " Restatoa
Product
Term loans - - -
Short term, term loan - - -
Long term, term loan 2,075,681,893 1,545,013,017 173,761,263
Hire purchase loans - - -
Personal residential loans - - -
Staff loans - - -
Other - - -
Sub Total 2,075,681,893 1,545,013,017 173,761,263
Interest Receivable 22,704,863 9,846,956 1,115,887
Grand Total 2,098,386,756 1,554,859,973 174,877,150

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars ly 15, 2021 ly 16, 202!
(July 16, 2022) (JL:Ryesi;teod : (Jl:ges‘:al:d K

Secured

Immovable assets 267,716,968 270,349,496 8,862,548

Government guarantee - - R

Collateral of Governement securities - - R

Collateral of fixed deposit receipt - - R

Group guarantee 1,807,964,925 1,274,663,521 164,898,715

Personal guarantee - - R

Other collateral - - R
Sub total 2,075,681,893 1,545,013,017 173,761,263
Unsecured - - N
Grand Total 2,075,681,893 1,545,013,017 173,761,263

4.7.4: Allowances for impairment
Specific allowances for impairment

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

As on Shrawan 01, 2077

pertetiers (uly 16, 2022 " Rostated ¥ Restaten

Balance at Shrawan 1 5,061,293 - -
Impairment loss for the year: - - -

Charge for the year 11,133,095 2,679,561 -

Recoveries/reversal during the year - -
Write-offs - - -
Other movement - 2,381,732.00 -
Balance at Ashadh end 16,194,388 5,061,293 -
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Shrawan 1 22,163,991 1,859,851 -
Impairment loss for the year: - - -

Charge/(Reversal) for the year (7,121,443) 20,304,140 1,859,851.00
Other movement - - -
Balance at Ashadh end 15,042,548 22,163,991 1,859,851
Total Allowances for impairment 31,236,936 27,225,284 1,859,851
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4.8

4.9

4.10

Investment securities

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Investment securities measured at amortized cost
Investment securities measured as at FVTOCI

Total

4.8.1: Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

-nepal rastra bank bonds

-nepal rastra bank deposit instruments
-others

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through OCI

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Equity Instruments
-unquoted equity instruments
-quoted equity instruments

Total - - -
Current Tax Assets
As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated
Current Tax Assets
Current year income tax assets 7,853,220 5,712,276 620
Tax assets of prior periods - - -
Current Tax Liabilities
Current year income tax liabilities 8,217,569 4,230,000 -
Tax liabilities of prior periods - - -
Total (364,349) 1,482,276 620

Investment Properties

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on Shrawan 12078

Additions during the year

Disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year
Adjustment /transfer

Net Amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1, 2078
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net Amount
Total
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4.13

4.14

Deferred Tax

Current Year

Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/FIs

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities

Property & equipment

828,749

Employees' defined benefit plan

828,749

Lease liabilities

Provisions

Other temporary differences

Deferred tax on temporory differences

828,749

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

828,749

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on 16th July 2022

(828,749)

Deferred tax (asset)/li as on 16th July 2021

(582,542)

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

246,207

(246,207)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax d in other p income

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity

Previous year

Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Net Deferred Tax Assets/
(Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Disposals

Property & equipment

582,542

Employees' defined benefit plan

582,542

Lease liabilities

Provisions

Other temporory differences

Deferred tax on temporory differences

582,542

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

582,542

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on 15th July 2021

(582,542)

Deferred tax (asset)/li as on 16th July 2020

147,062

Origination/(Reversal) during the year

(729,604)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss

729,604

Deferred tax d in other p income

Deferred tax exp i ised in directly in equity

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls

Loans and advances to customers

Investment properties

Investment securities

Property & equipment

147,062.00

Employees' defined benefit plan

(147,062)

Lease liabilities

Provisions

Other temporory differences

Deferred tax on temporory differences

147,062

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses

(147,062)

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on 16th July 2016

(147,062)

Other Assets

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

As on Shrawan 01, 2077

i July 15, 2021 July 16, 2020
Particulars (July 16, 2022) ( *;estated ) ( *;estated )
Assets held for sale - - -
Other non banking assets - - -
Bills receivable - - -
Account receivables 4,298,370 2,077,842 123,346
Accrued Income
Deferred employee expenditure - - -
Prepayments and deposit 701,696 321,193 118,597
Income tax deposit - - -
Lease Assets (Right to Use) 26,070,079 33,827,644
Other assets 905,242 746,214 -
Total 31,975,387 36,972,893 241,943
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4.15  Due to Bank and Financial Instutions

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated
Borrowing from BFls 1,690,868,923 1,430,441,581 34,403,229
Settlement and clearing accounts - - -
Other - - _
Total 1,690,868,923 1,430,441,581 34,403,229

4.16  Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated
Refinance from NRB B - _
Standing Liquidity Facility - - -
Lender of last report facility from NRB - - _
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - -
Other payable to NRB - - R
Total - - N

4.17  Derivative Financial Instruments

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars Ason Ashadh 32,2079y 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated

Held for trading
-interest rate swap - - -
-currency swap - - -
-forward exchange contract - - .
-others - - .
Held for risk management
-Interest rate swap - - -
-Currency swap - - -
-forward exchange contract - - -
-others - - R
Total - - R

Disposals
4.18 Deposit from Customers

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)

Particulars
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated

Institutional Customers
-term deposits - - -
-call deposits - - -
-other deposits - - -
Individual Customers - -
-term deposits - - -
-saving deposits - - -
-Savings from Members 311,574,394 149,664,966 13,863,970
-other deposits - -
Total 311,574,394 149,664,966 13,863,970

4.19 Borrowing

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - B, -
Other Institutions - B, -
Other - B, -
Sub total - - .
Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - - -
Multilateral Development Banks - - -
Other Institutions - - -
Sub total - . -
Total - - N
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4.20

4.21

Provisions

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078
(July 15,2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Onerous contracts

Other

Total

4.20.1: Movement in Provision

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Opening Balance

Provisions made during the year
Provisions used during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Unwind of discount

Closing Balance

Other Liabilities

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31,2078

As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars July 15, 2021 July 16,2020
(July 16, 2022) ( *zestated ) ( *I{estated )
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 3,589,927 1,540,140 490,416
Liability for long-service leave 2,499,739 2,207,494 -
Short-term employee benefits 674,938 702,737 402,528
Bills payable - - -
Creditors and accruals 8,337,577 3,486,030 1,307,677
Interest payable on deposits - 439 -
Interest payable on borrowing 6,589,711 895,977 -
Liabilities on defered grant income - - -
Unpaid dividend - - -
Liabilities under Lease 26,070,079.43 33,827,644 -
Employee bonus payable 1,842,043 2,355,168 -
Other Liabilities 12,443,387 282,507 135,741
Total 62,047,401 45,298,136 2,336,362

4.21.1: Defined Benefit Obligations

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Present value of unfunded obligations
Present value of funded obligations
Total present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Present value of net obligations

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations

4.21.2: Plan assets

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078
(July 15,2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Equity securities
Government bonds
Bank deposit
Other

Total

Actual Return on Plan Assets
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4.22

4.23

4.21.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078
(July 15,2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1
Actuarial losses/(gains)

Benefits paid by the plan

Current service costs and interest

Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end -

4.21.4: Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 -
Contributions paid into the plan -
Actuarial losses -
Benefits paid by the plan -
Expected return on plan assets -

Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end -

4.21.5: Amount Recognised in Profit or Loss

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Current service costs
Interest on obligation
Expected return on plan assets

Total -

4.21.6: Amount Recognised in OCI

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the period -

Total -

4.21.7: Actuarial Assumptions

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Discount rate

Expected return on plan asset
Future salary increase
Withdrawal rate

Debt Securities Issued

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078
(July 15,2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss

Debt securities issued at amortised cost

Total -

Subordinated Liabilities

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars (July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 16, 2020)
*Restated

Redeemable preference shares -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities -
Other -

Total -
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4.24 Share capital

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated
Ordinary shares 152,500,000 152,500,000 152,500,000
Convertible preference shares (equity component on - - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component or - - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - -
Total 152,500,000 152,500,000 152,500,000

4.24.1: Ordinary shares

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077

As on Ashadh 32,2079

i July 15, 2021 July 16, 2020

Particulars (July 16, 2022) ( *zestated ) ( *;estated )
Authorized Capital
3,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000
Issued capital
2,500,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 250,000,000 250,000,000 250,000,000
Subscribed and paid up capital
1,525,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 152,500,000 152,500,000 152,500,000
Total 152,500,000 152,500,000 152,500,000

4.24.2: Ordinary share ownership

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)

Percent Amount

Domestic ownership (Promoter)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed intitutions
Other Institutions
Public
Other
Domestic Ownership (Public)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed intitutions
Other Institutions
Other
Foreign ownership (Promoter)
Foreign ownership (Public)

32.79% 50,000,000.00

67.21% 102,500,000.00

Total

100.00% 152,500,000.00

Particulars

As on Ashadh 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
*Restated

Percent Amount

Domestic ownership
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed intitutions
Other Institutions
Public
Other
Domestic Ownership (Public)
Nepal Government
"A" class licensed institutions
Other licensed intitutions
Other Institutions
Other
Foreign ownership (Promoter)
Foreign ownership (Public)

32.79% 50,000,000.00

67.21% 102,500,000.00

Total

100.00% 152,500,000.00
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4.24.3: Details of Shareholding more than 0.5%

Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022)
% of Holding No of Shares Amount

Domestic Ownership (Promoter)
A Class Licensed Institution
Kumari Bank Limited 16.39% 250000 25,000,000.00
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd 16.39% 250000 25,000,000.00
Other Institutions

Other

Pushpa Jyoti Dhungana 3.28% 50,000 5,000,000.00
Baburam Thapa 2.30% 35,000 3,500,000.00
Krishna Bahadur Thapa 2.23% 34,000 3,400,000.00
Ghanshyam Pandey 1.97% 30,000 3,000,000.00
Bamdev Gauli 1.31% 20,000 2,000,000.00
Gyanendra Subedi 1.18% 18,000 1,800,000.00
Parbata Gautam 1.18% 18,000 1,800,000.00
Sita Prasad Pokharel 1.05% 16,000 1,600,000.00
Rukmina Thapa 0.98% 15,000 1,500,000.00
Lal Chandra Upreti 0.98% 15,000 1,500,000.00
Shkatikapur Thapa 0.72% 11,000 1,100,000.00
Sakuna Adhikari (Siwakoti) 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Ram Awatar Yadav 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Baburam Budhathoki 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Madan Prasad Wosti 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Maheshwor Karki 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Pawan Kumar Sharma 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Jay Ram Panta 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Siddhi Lal Magia 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Shambhu Prasad Dahal 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Purnima Kumari Bhandari 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Tulsiram Pokharel 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Sirilal Majhi 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Rajendra Sangraula 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Sher Bahadur Shrestha 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Damodar Panta 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Bir Bahadur Thapa 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Jamuna Devi Sharma 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Ram Prasad Pudasaini 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Tulsi Shrestha 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Bina Parajuli 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Humala Devi Sharma 0.66% 10,000 1,000,000.00
Kedar Kumar KC 0.52% 8,000 800,000.00

Domestic Ownership (Public)
A Class Licensed Institution
Other Institutions

Other

Foreign Ownership (Promoter)
Foreign Ownership (Public)

4.25 Reserves

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
As on Ashadh 32, 2079

Particulars July 15, 2021 July 16, 2020
(July 16, 2022) ( *zestated ) ( *Igestated )

Statutory general reserve 5,281,615 3,539,223 -
Capital reserve
Exchange equilisation reserve
Investment adjustment reserve
Corporate social responsibility reserve 264,081 176,961 -
Client Protection Fund 168,161 176,961 -
Capital redemption reserve
Regulatory reserve 14,304,064 6,203,582 703,009
Assets revaluation reserve
Fair value reserve
Dividend equalisation reserve
Actuarial gain / (loss)
Special reserve
Debenture Redemption Reserve
Other Reserve

Employee Training Fund 1,260,615 - -

Deferred Tax Reserve 1,195,680 990,406 23,767
Total 22,474,214 11,087,133 726,776
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Retained Earnings

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077

Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated *Restated
-opening balance 12,925,823 (9,115,645) (925,190)
-add: profit for the year 11,706,979 26,664,216 (8,190,455)
-add: transfer from regulatory reserves (8,100,481) - -
-less: transfer to regulatory reserves - - -
-add: transfer from statutory reserves - - -
-less: transfer to statutory reserves (2,575,535) (4,622,748) -
Closing Balance 13,956,786 12,925,823 (9,115,645)

4.25.1 General Reserve

General reserve is created as per section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 equivalent to 20% of the net profit
earned during the year until the reserve is twice the paid-up share capital of the bank after which 10% of the ne profit earned during
the year shall be set aside as general reserve. Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior
approval of Nepal Rastra Bank.

4.25.2 Exchange Equilization Reserve

Exchange Equalization Reserve is the reserve created as per section 44 of the Banks and Financial Institutions Act 2073 Equivalent
to 25% of the foreign exchange gain realized on the translation of foreign currency to the reporting currency during the year other
than Indian rupees. Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank
other than to set off revaluation loss incurred, if any during the year.

4.25.3 Investment Adjustment Reserve

It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in banks investments as directed by the directives of
Nepal Rastra Bank.

4.25.4 Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value and
the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income , until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of
change in fair value of those financial assets has been presented under this account head

4.25.5 Asset Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as property & equipment, intangible assets, investment property) has been
presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected losses but may not be fully
available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market values and tax consequences of revaluation.

4.25.6 Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the directive od NRB for the
purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which has not been regarded as free for distribution of dividend ( cash as well as bonus
share ) has been presented under this account head. The amount allocated to this reserve includes interest income recognized but
not received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRSs (in
case lower impairment is recognized under NFRSs ), amount equals to deferred tax assets , actuarial loss recognized in other
comprehensive income , amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

4.25.7 Corporate Social Responsibilty Fund

The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating 1% of net profit after tax has been presented under
this account head

4.25.8 Client Protection Fund
The fund created for the purpose of members by allocating 1 % of net profit after tax has been presented under this account head
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4.26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
*Restated *Restated

Contingent Liabilities
Undrawn Disbursed Facilities
Capital Commitments

Lease Commitments
Litigations

Others

Total

4.26.1: Capital Commitments

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
*Restated *Restated

Capital Commitments in relation to Property and Equipment
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Capital Commitments in relation to Intangible assets
Approved and contracted for
Approved but not contracted for

Total

4.26.2: Lease Commitments

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31,2078 As on Shrawan 01, 2077
(July 15, 2021) (July 16, 2020)
*Restated *Restated

Operating Lease Commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
operating lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Disposals

Finance Lease Commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable
finance lease, where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Total

4.26.3: Litigation

Explanatory paragraphs are required for litigation contingent liabilities as per their own case of each institution.
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4.3

4.28

4.29

4.30

900 | FTftish ufdae, Rowve/ 0w

Interest Income

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

i July 15, 2021
Particulars (July 16, 2022) ( *zest'ated )

-from cash and cash equivalents - -
-from due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -
-from placements with bank and financial institutions 2,479,667 1,135,816
-from loans and advances to banks and financial institutions - -
-from loans and advances to customers 283,052,024 130,581,351
-from investment securities - -
-from loans and advances to staff - -
-from others - -

Total Interest Income 285,531,691 131,717,166

Interest Expenses

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

i ly 15, 2021
Particulars (July 16, 2022) (Jlizes!:'at:d )

-on dues to bank and financial institutions 171,489,551 40,597,590
-on dues to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
-on deposit from customers 10,881,662 5,343,909
-on borrowings - -
-on debt securites issued - -
-on subordinated liabilities - -
-others

Total Interest Expenses 182,371,213 45,941,499

Fees and Commission Income

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

i July 15, 2021
Particulars (July 16, 2022) ( *zest'ated )

-from loan administration fees 24,913,345 33,247,674
-from service fees - -
-from commitment fees - -
Disposals - _
-from prepayment and swap fees - -
-from brokerage fees - -
-from remittance fees 1,407,767 -
-from other fees and commission income 51,141 597

Total fees and commission income 26,372,252 33,248,271

Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

-on ATM management fees

-on VISA/Master card fees

-on guarantee commission fees

-on brokerage

-on D.D/ T.T/swift fees

-on remittance fees and commission
-other fees and commission expenses

Total fees and commission expense
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4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

Net Trading Income

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

-from changes in fair value of trading assets
-from gain/loss on disposal of trading assets
-from interest income on trading assets
-from dividend income on trading assets
-from gain/loss foreign exchange transation
-from other

Total net trading income

Other Operating Income

Particulars

As on Ashadh 32, 2079
(July 16, 2022)

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
(July 15, 2021)
*Restated

-from foreign exchange revauation gain

-from gain/loss on sale of investment securities
-from fair value gain/loss on investment properties
-from dividend on equity instruments

-from gain/loss on sale of property and equipment
-from gain/loss on sale of investment property
-from operating lease income

-from gain/loss on sale of gold and silver

-from locker rent

-from other

Total other operating income

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loan and other Losses

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

i July 15, 2021
Particulars (July 16, 2022) ( *zestated )

-on loans and advances to B/Fls - -
-on loans and advances to customer 4,011,651 25,365,434
-on financial investment - -
-on cash and cash equivalents - -
-on placement with banks and financial institutions - -
-on property and equipment - -
-on goodwill and intangible assets - -
-on investment properties - -
-on account receivables - 3,389,216

Total impairment charge/(reversal) 4,011,651 28,754,651

Personnel Expense

As on Ashadh 32, 2079

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

i July 15, 2021
Particulars (July 16, 2022) ( *Izestated )
-Salaries 24,607,292 12,601,728
-Allowances 33,010,158 20,673,841
-Gratuity 2,049,787 1,049,724
-Provident fund 2,459,919 1,259,240
-Uniform - 93,733
-Training and development expenses 2,844,258 1,624,813
-Leave encashment 824,825 2,216,944
-Medical insurance 317,699 145,309
-Life insurance - -
-Employee incentives - -
-Cash settled share-based payments - -
-Pension expenses - -
-Finance expense under NFRS - -
-Other staff expenses 61,235 -
Sub Total 66,175,173 39,665,332
-Employee bonus 1,672,425 2,355,168
Total Personnel Expenses 67,847,599 42,020,500
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4.35 Other Operating Expense

4.36

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated
-Directors' fees 575,500 460,500
-Directors' expenses 57,795 98,474
-Auditor's remuneration 339,000 113,000
-Other audit related expenses 1,470,129 628,848
-Professional and legal expense 452,484 76,500
-Office administration expenses 25,342,074 9,070,192
-Operating lease expenses 8,947,749 5,688,272
-Operating expense on investment properties - -
-Corporate social responsibility expenses - 17,450
-Client Protection expenses - -
-Onerous lease provisions - -
-Other operating expenses - -
Total operating expense 37,184,731 16,153,236
4.35.1 Office Administration Expense
As on Ashadh 31, 2078
Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated
Water & electricity 646,469 372,539
Repairs and maintenance 508,611 225,061
Insurance 900,765 83,041
Postage, telex, telephone,fax 1,230,171 891,456
Printing and stationery 2,265,363 1,546,729
Newspaper, books and journals 430,870 205,714
Advertisement - -
Donation - -
Security expenses - -
Deposit and loan guarantee premium 5,688,680 -
Travel allowance and expenses 3,657,608 1,814,117
Entertainment 144,367 58,989
Annual/special general meeting expenses 27,280 115,299
Other
(a) ATS/AMC expenses 972,485 398,714
(b) Bank charges 2,696,030 1,525,853
(c) Business promotion - -
(d) Cleaning & gardening 3,018,567 803,927
(e) Fees & taxes - -
(f) Fuel & other lubricants 1,427,797 370,278
(g) Membership fees - -
(h) Office goods and supply 215,009 -
(i) Pantry expenses 103,315 25,856
(j) Share registration expenses - -
(k) Others 618,588 632,620
(k) IPO Issue Expenses 790,100
Total Office Administration Expense 25,342,074 9,070,192
Depreciation & Amortisation
As on Ashadh 31, 2078
Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated
-on property and equipment 3,764,495 2,167,976
-on investment property - -
-on software and intangibles - -
Total Depreciation & Amortisation 3,764,495 2,167,976
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4.37 Non Operating Income

Particulars

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)

(July 16, 2022) *Restated

-from recovery of written off loans

-from others

Total non Operating Income

4.38 Non Operating Expense

Particulars

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)

(July 16, 2022) *Restated

-on loan written off

-on redundancy provision
-on expense of restructuring
-on others

Total Non Operating Expense

4.39 Income Tax Expense

As on Ashadh 31, 2078
As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)

Particulars (July 16, 2022) raectod
-Current Tax Expense
-income tax expense based on profit for the year 8,217,569 4,230,000
-under/(over) provision of income taxe in previous years - -
8,217,569 4,230,000
-Deferred Tax Expense
-origination and reversal of temporary differences (246,207) (729,604)
-change in tax rates - -
-recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
(246,207) (729,604)
Total income tax expenses 7,971,362 3,500,396
Effective Tax Rate 47.7% 11.7%

4.39.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit

As on Ashadh 31, 2078

Particulars As on Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 15, 2021)
(July 16, 2022) *Restated
Profit before tax 16,724,255 29,927,577
Tax Amount at rate of 30% 5,017,276 8,978,273
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax pur 2,193,169 -
Less: Tax effect on exempt income - -
Add/(Less):Tax effect on NFRS adjustments 2,954,087 (2,954,087)
Less: Tax effect of expenses that are deductible for tax purpo:t (1,946,962) -
Total Income tax 8,217,570 6,024,186
Effective tax rate 49.1% 20.1%
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5 Disclosure and Additional Information
5.1. Risk Management
Risk taking is an inherent part of financial institutions providing microfinance services, as it provides financial services to low
income groups and individuals. Thus, management of risk plays a crucial role in smooth running of any microfinance and failure in
doing so can have devastating consequences.

In order to manage the risks that come with running a business, the Laghubitta has established a separate Integrated Risk
Management Department (IRMD). IRMD oversees risks that arise from everyday operations as well as looks at global and domestic
outlook and its potential implications on microfinance. The findings of this analysis are then presented to Senior Management, the
Risk Management Committee, and the Board for discussion. If necessary, instructions are issued based on these findings.

i. Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is an independent committee headed by a non-executive Director, responsible for overall
risk management in the Laghubitta and to oversight the implementation of risk management framework in the Laghubitta. RMC
assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with regards to risk appetite that the Laghubitta is able and
willing to assume in its exposures and business activities, risk management, compliance framework and governance structure that
supports it. It periodically reviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reasonableness. It also
reviews whether the internal control and risk management system is adequate or not to ensure well-ordered and prudent conduct
of business. The committee is to review the overall risk management structure and monitor the effectiveness of the risk
management system. Currently, the Risk Management Committee comprises of following Members:

S.N. Name Position
1 [Keshab Thapa Cordinator
2 |Prabin Jha Member
3 |Chopkanta Chaudhary Member
4 |Chandan Kumar Sardar Member-Secretary

ii. Risk Governance

Laghubitta has prepared and implemented various policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the
Laghubitta and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity building programs,
well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. Through its Risk Management Framework, the Laghubitta
seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Laghubitta's financial activities as well
as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking. The
Laghubitta's risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the Laghubitta risk blanket is
cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, senior management and committees. The Board has set policies and
procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with NRB directives, and has
effectively implemented the same.

iii. Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Laghubitta has appropriate internal control framework in place that supports the
achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Laghubitta shall be looked upon with a view to establish
a proper control mechanism is in place during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize profitable business
opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations and enhance resilience to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with
NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same. The effectiveness of the Laghubitta's internal control system and
effective implementation of policies is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees, Management and Internal Audit
Department. Internal Audit Reports are periodically forwarded to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues
appropriate corrective action in accordance with the issue involved to the respective department or branches.

5.1.1. Credt Risk

Credit Risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of borrower to meet his contractual
obligations to pay the Laghubitta in accordance with agreed terms. As credit (financing) is the significant part of Laghubitta
activities, the policy, procedure and framework related to credit activities and credit risk management formulated by the Laghubitta
has been implemented effectively to mitigate/ minimize the credit risk of the Laghubitta.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors hence overall strategy as well as significant
policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management is responsible for implementing the Laghubitta's
credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and
the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these policies.
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5.1.2. Market Risk

Market risk can be defined as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the microfinance caused due to adverse
changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity) and volatilities of those prices. The Laghubitta has an
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and
maturity profiles of assets and liabilities, articulating interest rate, funding policy and balance sheet management. After
understanding the market conditions and demands; the Board and the management bring programs to suit the potentials and
conditions of the market, and reduce the risk by providing appropriate responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottom
based on their capabilities. For this, the internal control system has been strengthened.

5.1.3. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Laghubitta will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Laghubitta might be unable to
meet its payment obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and
stress circumstances. Such scenarios could occur if the Laghubitta is unable to obtain funding for liquid asset positions on
acceptable terms. Laghubitta is unable to invest in accordance with customer demand and is also unable to repay savings and
other legal obligations on time due to a lack of liquidity. To limit this risk, Laghubitta has arranged for diversified funding sources in
addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of managing assets with liquidity in mind and monitoring future cash flows
and various liquidity ratios periodically. Further to this, Laghubitta conducts periodic stress testing to analyze possible outcome.

5.1.4. Operational risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the Laghubitta. Operational Risk is pervasive across all the functions
of the Laghubitta and is influenced by all resources, including human resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the
Laghubitta to carry out those functions. Operational Risk can be caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud,
business interruptions, system failures, damage to physical infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in
products, customers, inadequacy in procedures or flawed process designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any
business function or the business supporting functions.

The Laghubitta is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business practices and therefore
to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a sound position to deal effectively with those events that
do occur. The adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures rolled out by Laghubitta and their effective
implementation is closely monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in line with regulatory
requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry.

5.1.5. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will increase the cost of funds. To limit this risk, Laghubitta
has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and has implemented a policy of managing assets
with interest rates in mind, monitoring interest rates on a regular basis, and making repayment accordingly.

5.1.6. Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk is the risk of potential failures in strategic planning, which may lead to an organization not achieving its core
objectives. It is the risk arising from adverse business decisions or the failure to implement appropriate business decisions in a
manner that is consistent with the organization's strategic goals. Strategic Risk Management requires assessing, managing and
measuring the risk associated with business strategy. It involves evaluating possible events and scenarios that may have an impact on our
strategy and how they might affect the value of the Laghubitta taking into account the overall economic and social environment of the country
while setting tolerable levels of risk.

5.1.7. Compliance Risk

Compliance risk is an organization's potential exposure to legal penalties, financial forfeiture and material loss, resulting from its
failure to act in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, internal policies or prescribed best practices. Laghubitta takes the
responsibility of following best practices and industry standards very seriously. It has created a separate department, “Compliance
Department” specifically to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. The Laghubitta adopts three lines of defense model
that defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk within Laghubitta. Primarily, the respective departments
and units of Laghubitta are responsible for ensuring that compliance with related and applicable laws and regulations, second the
compliance department assesses and monitors the compliance and risks and coordinates its control activities with Risk
Department and finally Internal Audit Department of the Laghubitta reporting on compliance risks in matters relating to the
Laghubitta.
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5.2. Capital management

The Laghubitta's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adequately
capitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed institution providing
financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(i) Qualitative disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to manage all
material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for
maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing all
material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital.

(ii) Qualitative disclosures

Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

A. Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Amount (NPR.)

Paid up Equity Share Capital

152,500.00

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

5,880.62

Retained Earnings

19,422.09

Un-audited current year cumulative profit

Special Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustment Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserves Fund

1,368.81

Deferred Tax Reserve

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Less: Investment in equity of licensed Financial Institutions

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits

Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments

Less: Purchase of Land & Building in excess of limit & utilized

Less: Reciprocal crossholdings

Less: Other Deductions

Total Tier 1 Capital (Core Capital)

178,294.85

B. Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Amount (NPR.)

Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

General loan loss provision

15042.548

Additioanl Loan Loss Provison

Exchange Equalization Reserves

Investments Adjustment Reserves

Assets Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserve Fund

Total Tier 2 Capital (Supplementary Capital)

15,042.55
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Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)

I. On- Balance-Sheet Items

At the month end of Ashadh, 2079

- Weight Current period
S.N. Description %) Amount (NPR)) RWA

1 Cash Balance 0 2,567.09 -

2 Gold (Tradable) 0 - -

3 NRB Balance 0 - -

4 Investment to Govt. Bond 0 - -

5 Investment to NRB Bond 0 - -

6 Loan against Own FD 0 - -

7 Loan against Govt. Bond 0 - -

8 Accrued interests on Govt. bond 0 - -

9 Investment to Youth and Small Entrepreneurs 0 - -
10 Balance on domestic banks and financial 20 119,832.84 23,966.57
11 Loan against other banks' and financial 20 - -
12 Foreign bank balance 20 - -
13 Money at call 20 - -
14 Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20 - -
15 Investment to internationally rated Banks 20 - -
16 Inter-bank lending 20 - -
17 Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100 - -
18 Other investments 100 - -
19 Loans & advances, bills purchase/discount 100 2,098,386.76 2,098,386.76
20 Fixed assets 100 21,672.70 21,672.70
21 Net interest receivables (Toral IR - 8 - Interest 100 - -
22 Net Non-Banking Asset 100 - -
23  |Other assets (Except advance tax payment) 100 5,905.31 5,905.31
24 Real estate/residential housing loans exceeding 150 -

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 2,248,364.69 2,149,931.33
1l. Off- Balance-Sheet Items
_— Weight Current period
S.N. Description %) Amount (NPR)) RWA

1 Bills collection 0 -

2 Forward foreign exchange contract 10
3 L/C with maturity less than six months 20
4 Guarantee against International rated bank's 20

5 L/C with maturity more than six months 50
6 Bid bond, performance bond and underwriting 50
7 Loan sale with repurchase agreement 50
8 Advance payment guarantee 100
9 Financial and other guarantee 100
10 Irrevocable loan commitment 100 -
11 Possible liabilities for income tax 100
12 All types of possible liabilities including 100
13 Rediscounted bills 100 -
14 Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100
15 Unpaid guarantee claims 200
16  |Amount to be maintained for operational risk (1% 100 22,484

Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 22,484
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 2,248,365 2,172,415
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D. Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars Amount (NPR.)

Core Capital (Tier 1) 178,294.85
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 15,042.55
Total Capital Fund 193,337.40
Risk Weighted Exposures 2,172,414.98

E. Capital Adequacy Ratio

D. Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets:

1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 173,793.20

2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 86,896.60

3 Capital Fund maintained (in %) 8.90%

4 Core Capital maintained (in %) 8.21%
F.Amount of Non-Performing Assets (both Gross and Net): Amount in NPR
Particulars GROSS AMOUNT PROVISION NET AMOUNT
Rescheduled / Restructured
Sub Standard 29,787,011 4,221,366 25,565,645
Doubtful 20,965,519 8,713,076 12,252,443
Loss 3,259,946 3,259,946 -
Total 54,012,476 16,194,388 37,818,088

G. Ratio of Non-Performing Assets as per Regulatory Classification

Particulars Percentage
Total NPL to Total Loans & Advances 1.43%
Net NPL to Net Loans & Advances 0.54%

H. Summary of the Laghubitta's internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future
activities, if applicable
The current paid up capital of the Laghubitta stands at NPR 152,500,000

I. Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in case of subordinated term
debts including hybrid capital instruments.

The current paid up capital of the Laghubitta are unconditional. The Laghubitta has not issued any debentures yet.

(iii) Compliance with external requirement

"The Laghubitta has compiled with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and there are no such
consequence where the institutions has not compiled with those requirement”
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5.3 Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair value through
other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets and liabilities:

As on Ashadh End 2079

Particulars A"‘°(';‘";3Rd)c°5t FVTPL  FVTOCI Total (NPR.)

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent 122,399,926.00 - - 122,399,926.00
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - -
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - - -
Loan and Advances to Customers 2,067,149,819.89 - - 2,067,149,819.89
Investment Securities - - - -
Current Tax Assets - - - -
Investment Property - - - -
Property and Equipment - - - -
Goodwill and Intangible Assets - - - -
Deferred Tax Assets - - - -
Other Assets - - - -
Total Financial Assets 2,189,549,745.89 - - 2,189,549,745.89
Financial Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument - -
Deposits from Customers 311,574,393.51 - - 311,574,393.51
Borrowing - - - -
Dispc Other Liabilities - - - -
Debt Securities Issued - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities 311,574,394 - - 311,574,394

As on Ashadh End 2078

Particulars Am°(':l';:d)c°5t FVTPL  FVTOCI Total (NPR.)

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash equivalent 217,456,362.00 - - 217,456,362.00
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions - - - -
Derivative Financial Instruments - - - -
Other Trading Assets - - - R
Loan and Advances to MFIs & Cooperatives - - - -
Loan and Advances to Customers 1,527,634,689.09 - - 1,527,634,689.09
Investment Securities - - - -
Current Tax Assets - - - -
Investment Property - - - R
Property and Equipment - - - -
Goodwill and Intangible Assets - - - -
Deferred Tax Assets - - - R
Other Assets - - - R
Total Financial Assets 1,745,091,051.09 - - 1,745,091,051.09
Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions - - - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - -
Derivative Financial Instrument - - - -
Deposits from Customers 149,664,966.00 - - 149,664,966.00
Borrowing - - - R
Other Liabilities - - - R
Debt Securities Issued - - - R
Total Financial Liabilities 149,664,966 - - 149,664,966
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5.4. Operating Segment Information
5.4.1.General information

A component of the laghubitta that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur losses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of
the Laghubitta, whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resources allocation to each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available is termed as operating segment. Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified seven reporting segments of the laghubitta
for the purpose of financial reporting:

a. Province 1

b. Koshi Province

c. Bagmati Province

d. Gandaki Province

€. Lumbini Province

f. Karnali Province

g. Sudurpaschim Province

5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars Koshi dhest Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Karnali d hil Total
Revenues from external customers
Inter Segment Expenses/revenues
Net Revenue

Interest revenue 95,388,080.36 94,539,883.53 20,596,261.66 5,868,410.12 31,398,055.42 1,362,022.02 21,553,304.47 270,706,017.58
Interest 3,268,116.15 3,861,960.11 1,045,802.53 474,335.40 1,452,202.18 61,076.14 721,519.77 10,885,012.28
Net Interest expenses/revenue 92,119,964.21 90,677,923.42 19,550,459.13 5,394,074.72 29,945,853.24 1,300,945.88 20,831,784.70 259,821,005.30
Depreciation and amortization 939,011.13 599,766.54 105,106.59 31,187.98 208,535.18 28,761.00 187,343.69 2,099,712.11
Segment profit/(loss) 15,492,026.39 13,304,308.79 4,912,946.93 1,388,997.01 662,617.27 (152,756.09) (382,341.51) 35,225,798.79
Impairment of assets

assets 829,181,421.55 704,898,197.48 299,453,041.08 46,066,673.79 231,414,580.65 21,711,790.72 176,459,830.96 2,309,185,536.23

829,181,421.55 | 704,898,197.48 299,453,041.08 | 46,066,673.79 | 231,414,580.65 | 21,711,790.72 | _ 176,459,830.96 | _ 2,309,185,536.23

990 | arffer gfade, Rowve /0w’ ST Tt fadier g fa7., wHid-, FTaver==is




5.11.1. Reconciliation of equity

Particulars

Explanatory Note

As at 01.04.2077

As at 31.03.2078

Date of Transition

End of last period
presented under
previous GAAP)

Total Equity under previous GAAP

-9,528,523.00

8,167,591.00

Adjustments under NFRSs

Impairment on loans and advances

Fair Value & employees benefit accounting of staff loan

Lease accounting

Measurement of investment securities at fair value

Revaluation of property & equipment

Recognition of investment property

Amortization of debt securities

Deferred tax

-334,766.00

-2,954,087.00

Defined benefit obligations of employees

Goodwill/Bargain purchase gain

Interest Income

1,115,887.27

9,846,956.09

Other

Total Equity under NFRS

-8,747,401.73

15,060,460.09

Particulars

Explanatory Note

For the year ended
31.03.2078

(the latest period
presented under

previous GAAP)
Profit/(Loss) for
the year
Previous GAAP Profit after tax 17,696,114.00
Adjustments under NFRSs:
Interest Income a 8,731,068.82
Impairment of loan and advances -
Employees benefit amortization under staff loan -
Defined benefit obligation of employee Disposals -
Operating lease expense -
Amortization expense of debt securities -
Other operating income .
Interest expense -
Depreciation & Amortization -
Other -
Deferred tax b -2,619,321.00
Total adjustment to profit or loss 6,111,747.82

Profit or loss under NFRSs

23,807,861.82

Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive income under NFRSs

23,807,861.82

Explanatory Notes

Loans & Advances - Under GAAP, Loans to staff were mesured at cost; the actual amount disbursed less repayment. Uner NFRS, these loans have
been measured at fair values. Further loans to staff and interest receivable on loans had been classified under "other assets" which have been
reclassified under "Loans and Advances to Customer".

Staff Loan - There is No staff loan.

Defined Benefits obligation - Under GAAP, defined obligations related to gratuity were measured at undiscounted amounts equals to the amount
of payments that had accured as at the reporting date (i.e. the amounts that would have been payable has the employees completed their
employment as at the reporting date). These obligations amount has been carried forward as per liability calculated through compoany's internal
policy and is not measured through actuarial valuation.
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Date of Transition

End of last period presented under previous

GAAP)
Particulars Explanato Effectof |OPENing NFRS Cumulative
ry Note Previous L statement of . Effect of Amount as per
GAAP Tra':i::: to Financial Previous GAAP Transition to NFRSs
Position NFRSs

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,565,765 - 11,565,765 | 217,456,362 - 217,456,362
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - - - - - -
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions - - - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -
Other trading assets - - - - - -
Loan and advances to MFls & Cooperatives - - - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 1 171,901,412 | 1,115,887 | 173,017,299 | 1,517,787,733 | 9,846,956 | 1,527,634,689
Investment securities - - - - - -
Current Tax Assets 2 - 620 620 - 5,712,276 5,712,276
Investment property - - - - - -
Property and equipment 3 10,259,696 | -1,781,430| 8,478,266 12,410,101 -1,979,180 10,430,921
Goodwill and intangible assets 4 -247,336 1,781,430 | 1,534,094 -619,635 1,979,180 1,359,545
Deferred Tax Assets 5 - - - -582,542 582,542 -
Other Assets 6 242,563 -620 241,943 5,210,067 -2,064,818 3,145,249
Total Assets 193,722,100( 1,115,887 | 194,837,987 | 1,751,662,086 | 14,076,956 | 1,765,739,042
Liabilities
Due to Banks and Financial Institutions 34,403,229 - 34,403,229 [ 1,430,441,581 - 1,430,441,581
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - -
Deposit from customers 13,863,970 - 13,863,970 | 149,664,966 - 149,664,966
Borrowings - - - - - -
Current tax liabilities - - - - 4,230,000 4,230,000
Provisions - - - - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 5 147,062 334,766 481,828 -582,542 2,954,087 2,371,545
Other Liabilities 7 2,336,362 - 2,336,362 11,470,492 - 11,470,492
Debt securities issued - - - - - -
Subordinated Liabilities Disposals - - - - - -
Total Liabilities 50,750,623 | 334,766 | 51,085,389 [ 1,590,994,497( 7,184,087 | 1,598,178,584
Equity - -
Share capital 152,500,000 - 152,500,000 | 152,500,000 - 152,500,000
Share premium - - - - - -
Retained earnings 8 -9,675,585 781,121 -8,894,464 3,397,779 6,892,869 10,290,648
Reserves 9 147,062 - 147,062 4,769,810 - 4,769,810
Total Equity 142,971,477 781,121 |143,752,598| 160,667,589 | 6,892,869 | 167,560,458
Total Liabilities and Equity 193,722,100 ) 1,115,887 | 194,837,987 | 1,751,662,086 | 14,076,956 | 1,765,739,042
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For the year ended (the latest period presented under

Explanatory previous GAAP)
Particulars
Note Effect of Amount as per
Previous GAAP Transition to NFRSs
NFRSs

Interest Income 1 122,986,097.55| 8,731,068.82 |131,717,166.37
Interest Expenses 45,941,498.87 45,941,498.87
Net interest income 77,044,598.68 | 8,731,068.82 | 85,775,667.50
Fees and commission income 33,248,271.37 33,248,271.37
Fees and commission expenses - -
Net fee and commission income 33,248,271.37 - 33,248,271.37
Net interest, fee and commission income 110,292,870.05( 8,731,068.82 (119,023,938.87

Net Trading Income

Other Operating Income

Total operating income

110,292,870.05

8,731,068.82

119,023,938.87

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses

28,754,650.51

28,754,650.51

Net Operating Income 81,538,219.54 | 8,731,068.82 | 90,269,288.36
Operating Expenses

Personnel Expenses 42,020,499.67 42,020,499.67
Other Operating Expenses 16,153,236.09 16,153,236.09
Depreciation and Amortization 2,167,975.82 2,167,975.82
Operating profit 21,196,507.96 | 8,731,068.82 | 29,927,576.78
Non-operating income - -
Non-operating expense - -

Profit before income tax 21,196,507.96 | 8,731,068.82 | 29,927,576.78

Income Tax Expense

Current tax 4,229,999.98 4,229,999.98
Deferred tax 2 -729,604.00 2,619,321.00 1,889,717.00
Profit For the Year Disposals 17,696,111.98 | 6,111,747.82 | 23,807,859.80

Other Comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive

17,696,111.98

6,111,747.82

23,807,859.80
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For the year ended 31st Ashadh 2078

. Effect of
Particulars Explanatory Notes
rieutar P y As per GAAP transitionto As per NFRS
NFRS

Net cash flows from operating activities 209,836,678 44,805,684 254,642,362

Net cash flows from investing activities -3,946,081 1,135,815 -2,810,266

Net cash flows from financing activities - -45,941,499  -45,941,499
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 205,890,597 - 205,890,597
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period 11,565,765 - 11,565,765
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 217,456,362 - 217,456,362
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 32" Ashadh 2079

1. Reporting Entity
Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited 'herein referred as Microfinance or the company' was
registered at Office of Company Registrar as Public Limited Company on 2075/12/25 with an
authorized capital of NPR 300,000,000 and paid-up capital of NPR 152,500,000. The Micro
Finance is operating its business from its central office at Panauti-04, Kavrepalanchowk.

It had obtained license to carry on business of retail lending of micro credit in Nepal on
2076/06/01 from Nepal Rastra Bank as Class 'D' Licensed Institution and it commenced its
transactions since 2076/08/01. The main objective of Microfinance is to provide micro credit
lending to its members to promote the life style of deprived people as described by Nepal
Rastra Bank.

The Microfinance was listed on Nepal Stock Exchange on 23 September 2022.

2. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published by the Accounting Standards
Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
within the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank through NRB Directives to “D” Class Financial
institutions, 2078.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or
Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as adopted by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) — Nepal, pronounced
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and as per the directives no 4 of
Unified Directives, 2077 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Upto the year ended 31t Ashadh 2078, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, NRB Directives and Nepal Accounting
Standard (NAS) issued by ASB of Nepal. This is the company’s first NFRS adopted financial
statements. The date of transition is 1t Shrawan 2078. Refer note 5.11 for the details of the
significant first-time adoption exemption availed by the Company and the explanation of how
the transition from previous GAAP to NFRS has affected the Company’s financial position,
performance and cash flows.
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The company has adopted all the NFRS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with
NFRS 1, First Time adoption of NFRS. Recognition and description of the effect of transaction
have been summarized in Notes that follows.

2.2 Reporting Period

The Laghubitta follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st
Shrawan and ending on last day of Ashadh. These financial statements consist three
Statement of Financial Position as of 32nd Ashadh 2079, 31st Ashadh 2078 and 31st Ashadh
2077 as required by NFRS-1, First-Time Adoption of NFRS. The microfinance has also
presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
two statements of Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended
as of 32nd Ashadh 2079 and 31st Ashadh 2078 along with the necessary and related notes.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation
of financial statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2074 (First Amendment).
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 25th Falgun
2079 and recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 5th Annual General Meeting.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements of the Microfinance are presented in Nepalese Currency i.e.
Nepalese Rupee (NPR), which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Microfinance operates. There was no change in the Microfinance’s presentation and
functional currency during the period under review. The figures are rounded to nearest integer,
except otherwise indicated.

2.4 Use of Estimates, assumptions and judgements

The Laghubitta, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately
suit its circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Laghubitta is required to make
judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or
assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be
determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial
statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed. The NFRS
requires the Laghubitta to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the
financial statements. The Laghubitta applies estimates in preparing and presenting the
financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the
notes wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes
of accounting estimates, if any.
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2.4.1 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the
Laghubitta is satisfied that the Laghubitta has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of
profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.5 Changes in Accounting policies

The Laghubitta has applied several amendments to standards for the first time during the year
ended 32 Ashad 2079. The Laghubitta has prepared the opening statement of financial
position as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) as at 17 July 2020 (the transition
date) by recognizing all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by NFRS, not
recognizing the items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by NFRS, by reclassifying
items from previous GAAP to NFRS as required by NFRS and applying NFRS in measurement
of recognized assets and liabilities.

2.6 New standards issued but not yet effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NFRS
9 Financial Instruments and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been applied.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations
have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
NFRSs 2018 has been pronounced by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, vide its notice dated July 5, 2021 deferred
the application date of NFRS 17 Insurance contracts to July 16, 2023.

2.7 New standards and interpretation not adopted
All Nepal Accounting Standards and Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and other
interpretation issued by ASB of Nepal have been adapted while preparing financial
statements.

2.8 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current where the impact of
the discounting is material.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies applied and method of computation followed in the preparation of the
financial statement is consistent with the accounting policies applied and method of
computation followed in preparation of the annual financial statement unless stated
otherwise.
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3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on the historical-cost basis except for the required
material items in the statement of financial position where it has been disclosed as measured
at fair value or otherwise.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements
are continuously evaluated by the Microfinance. Any revision to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively in the period in which the estimates are revised and in the future
periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in notes
that follow.

Assets
All the assets except the Property Plant and Equipment and deferred tax assets are classified
as current assets unless specific additional disclosures is made in the notes.

Liabilities
All the liabilities except the defined benefit obligations are classified as current liabilities
tassets unless specific additional disclosures is made in the notes.

Materiality and Aggregation

In compliance with NAS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar
items is presented separately in the financial statements. ltems of dissimilar nature or
functions are presented separately unless they are material.

3.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The fair value of cash and cash equivalent is the carrying amount. Cash and cash equivalent
represent the amount of cash in hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions and
highly liquid with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their value. Cash and cash equivalent are
measured at amortized cost in the financial statement.

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Direct Method” in accordance with

NAS 07-Statement of Cash Flows.

3.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Recognition

The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of
financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
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instrument. The Microfinance initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits; and debt
securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that they are originated which is the date
that the Microfinance becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securities, NRB bond or
deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the
Microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and
sale of financial assets are recognized on trade date.

Classification

i. Financial Assets

The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost
or fair value on the basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The two classes
of financial assets are as follows:

1. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

2. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair
value. Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories
as below:

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading purpose or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon
initial recognition, transaction cost are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Microfinance makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent
changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive
income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
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income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

ii. Financial Liabilities
The Microfinance classifies the financial liabilities as follows:
a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they
are held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair
value is recognized at profit or loss

b) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest
method.

Measurement

Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Microfinance can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by
instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive
income pertaining to investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the
equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the ‘Fair
Value Reserve’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
on disposal of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

¢ it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

¢ on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a
financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit
and Loss when the Microfinance's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend
does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably. Dividends recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss are included
in the ‘Other income’ line item.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Microfinance
irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above)
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or
the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the
FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them on
different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with
any gain or loss arising on re-measurement recognized in Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets and is included in ‘other income’ line item. Dividend on financial asset at
FVTPL is recognized when the company’s right to receive the dividend is established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of
dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the
Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise;

¢ the financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities
or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9
permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with
NFRS 9

ST FTgfer Tl @ for,, gHidi-x, HTaveT==ie arfifer wfaee, Rowe/00 939



Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-
measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case these effects of
changes in credit risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining amount
of change in the fair value of liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not
subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are
measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying
amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortized cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalized as
part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance Expenses' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.

De-recognition
i. De-recognition of financial assets

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Microfinance neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for de-recognition that is created
or retained by the Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On de-recognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset, and the sum of
(i) the consideration received and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

The Microfinance enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
Statement of Financial Position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them, then the transferred assets are not
derecognized.
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ii. De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the
original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss.

Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit
price) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the
principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Microfinance has
access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Microfinance measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if transactions for
the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Microfinance uses valuation techniques that maximize the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates
all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:
Level 1: fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or
quoted price for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments
valued using models where significant inputs are observable.

Level 3: portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The
inputs are not based on observable market data.

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Microfinance assesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired when objective evidence
demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s), and
that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset(s) that can be
estimated reliably.
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Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired include significant financial difficulty of
the borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance
by the Microfinance on terms that the Microfinance would not otherwise consider, indications
that a borrower or issuer will enter Bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a
security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in
the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults in the group. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

In case of financial difficulty of the borrower, the Microfinance considers to restructure loans
rather than take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment
arrangements and agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated,
any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of
terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews
renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to
occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment,
calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Microfinance considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and investment
securities measured at amortized cost at both specific asset and collective level. The
Microfinance first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually significant and that are not individually significant are
assessed collectively.

If there is objective evidence on that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.

All individually significant loans and advances and investment securities are assessed for
specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and
advances and investment securities that are not individually significant are collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and investment securities
with similar risk characteristics.

Impairment of loans and advances portfolios is based on the judgments in past experience of
portfolio behavior. In assessing collective impairment the Microfinance uses historical trends
of the probability of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted
for management’s judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
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that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.
Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are regularly
benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortized cost are calculated as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the
Microfinance. If in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases
or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in the ‘Other Operating
Income’.

Impairment of investment in equity instrument classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or
prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by
reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The
cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss recognized previously in profit or loss.

3.4 Trading Assets

Interest income on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the microfinance’s
trading operation and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading
assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Interest expense on all trading liabilities is considered to be incidental to the microfinance’s
trading operation and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading
assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.5 Property and Equipment
Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the assets will flow to the Microfinance and the cost of the asset can be
reliably measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-constructed assets includes followings:

= Cost of materials and direct labor;
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= Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the working condition for
their intended use; and

= Capitalized borrowing cost

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from
the expenditure will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in
working condition are expensed as incurred.

Property and Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss if any. Neither any class of the property and equipment are
measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the benefits from the expenditure
will flow to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working
condition expensed as incurred.

Depreciation

The microfinance had the policy of depreciating Property and equipment on Diminishing value
method (WDV). Depreciation is charged from the date when the asset is put to use, and such
amount is recognized in profit or loss. Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of
the date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property and equipment for current year and
comparative periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life Rate of Depreciation
Office Equipment 5years 25%
Vehicles 5 years 20%
Computer (Including Printer) 5 years 20%
Furniture and Fixtures 5years 20%
Leasehold Improvements © Syears 20%
Building 40 years 2.5%

The capitalized value of Software purchased and installation costs are amortized over a
maximum 5 years period or within ownership period.

Assets with costs less than NPR 2,000 are charged off on purchase as revenue expenditure.

3.6 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not amortized. The useful
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life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

The intangible asset with finite useful lives are amortized over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate,
and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognized as intangible assets based
on materiality, accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow therefrom for a
period longer than one year.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of intangible assets for current year and
comparative periods are as follows:

Class of Assets Useful Life
Computer software 5years

3.7 Investment Property
Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital
appreciation or for both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied
property.

3.8 Income Tax

The Microfinance is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income taxes have been calculated as per
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 2058.

Income Tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent they relate to the items recognized directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current Tax

Current tax is the tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year using
tax rates that are enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
Current income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be
payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax base of assets and liabilities; and carry forward of unused tax losses. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rate that is expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rate enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which it can be utilized

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and appropriately adjusted to reflect
the amount that is reasonably/ virtually certain to be realized.

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are offset if all of the following conditions met:

a) if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the current tax liabilities and assets;

b) the taxes are levied by the same authority on the same tax entity; and
the entity intends to settle the current tax liabilities and assets on net basis or the tax assets
and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

3.9 Deposits, Debt Securities Issued and Subordinated Liabilities

Microfinance deposits consist of money placed in the Microfinance by the customer. These
deposits are made to various saving deposit account. Details and further disclosure about
deposits have been explained in Notes that follows.

3.10Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and when the amount can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:

- a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

- present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

o Itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; or
o The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for
completion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each
reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Microfinance from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
obligations under the contract.

3.11Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, disposal income, etc. Revenue
is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Microfinance and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the
period in which its recoverability of income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition
are as below:

Interest income

As per the requirement of NFRS, interest income is recognized in profit or loss using effective
interest method, except for those classified at fair value through profit or loss. Effective
Interest Rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. The calculation of effective
interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received that are integral part of the effective
interest only if considered necessary. Such a charge is not amortized over the life of the loan
and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have
derived under effective interest method and are recognized directly in statement of profit and
loss.

Interest income presented in Statement of Profit or Loss includes:
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Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective
interest rate method, except for loans and advances.

As per carve out on NAS 39 Para 9, the Group has not included the fees and points paid or
received in loans and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the
effective interest rate and have recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit
or Loss.

Similarly, as per carve out on NAS 39 AG 93, the Bank has applied the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either
partially or fully.

Interest on investment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective interest
rate.

Interest income on all trading assets are considered to be incidental to the Laghubitta’s
trading operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading
assets and liabilities in net trading income.

Interest income accrued but not received from Performing Loan and Advance till date has
been recognized in the current year interest income.

Interest income on Loans and Advances is recognized as per the Guideline on Recognition of
Interest Income, 2019 issued by NRB. Out of Total Interest Accrued of Rs.251,572,828.91
During the financial year, Interest Accrued from Performing Loan is Rs.199,724,456.47 And
from Non-Performing Loan is Rs.51,848,372.44.

Fees and Commission

Fees and commission income that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset
are included in measurement of effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income
including management fee, prepayment Charge, penal Charges etc are recognized as the
related service are performed.

Net Trading Income

Trading income/ loss is recognized for all realized interest, dividend and foreign exchange
differences including any unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities. The
trading income and loss are netted off and disclosed separately in Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.12Interest Expense

Interest expense including all other fees and service charge on all financial liabilities are
recognized in profit or loss. The interest expenses so recognized closely approximates the
interest expenses that would have been derived under effective interest rate method.

3.13Employee Benefits
a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under bonus required by the Bonus Act to pay the amount as a result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably under short
term employee benefits.

Short term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after
the end of the reporting period):
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e wages, salaries and social security contributions;
e paid annual leave and paid sick leave

e profit-sharing and bonuses; and

e non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefit Plan
Post-employment benefit plan includes followings

i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays a
fixed contribution to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as
personnel expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are
rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that
cash refund or reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined
contribution plan being due for more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the
employee render the service are discounted at their present value. The following are the
defined contribution plan provided by the Microfinance to its employees:

¢ Employees Provident Fund
In accordance with law, all employees of the Microfinance are entitled to receive benefits
under the provident fund, a defined contribution plan in which both the employee and the
Microfinance contribute monthly at a pre-determined rate (currently, 10% of the basic
salary plus grades). Microfinance does not assume any future liability for provident fund
benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit Plans
A defined benefit plan provided by microfinance to its employee are as follows: -

o Gratuity
For defined benefit plans, the liability to be recognized in the Statement of Financial
Position is the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan
assets. The Microfinance accounts for the liability for the gratuity as per the management
calculation.

Likewise, the company has contributed @ 8.33% of the basic salary as per the provisions
of existing bylaws of the organization. The microfinance has computed provision and
liabilities for Gratuity without considering Actuarial valuation.

e Leave Salary
The employees of the Microfinance are entitled to carry forward a part of their unveiled/
unutilized leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encase unveiled/
unutilized leave partially in terms of Employee Service Bye laws of the Microfinance. The
microfinance has computed provision and liabilities for leave without considering
Actuarial valuation.

ST FTgfer Tl @ for,, gHidi-x, HTaveT==ie arfier wfaae, Rowe/00 | 939



3.14Leases

IFRS 16 provides two methods for the time application of the standard; namely full
retrospective application and modified retrospective application. The Laghubitta has adopted
modified retrospective approach. Under the modified retrospective approach, for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the lease liability is measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments and discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. The right-of-use asset is measured at an amount equal to lease
liability adjusted by operating lease liability as per NAS 17 relating to that lease at the initial
application. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation. The
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.
The discount rate that is used to measure the liability is the incremental borrowing rate for the
Laghubitta as the rate implicit in the lease cannot be readily determined. The incremental
borrowing rate is determined by using a rate that is readily observable, such as the standard
borrowing rate for Laghubitta like bank rate.

3.15Share Capital and Reserves

The Laghubitta classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined
as residual interest in total assets of the Laghubitta after deducting all its liabilities. Common
shares are classified as equity of the Laghubitta and distributions thereon are presented in
statement of changes in equity.
Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are paid.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from
the initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved
thereon.
The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve,
Capital Reserve, regulatory reserve, investment adjustment reserve, Client protection fund,
Employee training fund, Deferred tax reserve, CSR reserve etc.

3.16Earnings per share including diluted
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year as adjusted
for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes)
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity
shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential
dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless
they have been issued at a later date.

There are no instruments, such as convertibles, that would require dilution of EPS.
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3.17Segment Reporting

The Laghubitta has identified the reportable segment as the business activities from which it
earns revenues and incurs expenses whose operating results are reviewed by the
management to make decision about resource allocation to each segment and assess its
performance. The Laghubitta's has identified seven segments namely: Province 1, Madesh
Province, Bagmati Province, Gandaki Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and
Sudurpaschim Province as the seven operating segment and the segment report is set out in
Notes 5.4.

Segment report include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be
allocated to aforesaid segment or those related to head office are unallocated are included in
Bagmati. The unallocated items generally comprise of head office assets, head office
expenses, and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment has been identified on the
basis of the location of the branches in 7 different provinces of the country.
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5. Disclosures & Additional Information
5.1 Risk Assessment and Management

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Microfinance may be unable to meet short term financial
demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to convert a security or hard asset to cash
without a loss of capital and/or income in the process.

Factors of Liquidity Risk includes Deterioration in quality of credit portfolio Concentrations in
either assets or liabilities, Rapid asset growth funded by highly volatile large deposits. A large
size of off-balance sheet exposure

The Microfinance has applied following mitigate for the management of Liquidity Risk
e Appropriate composition of assets and liabilities.
o Diversified and stable sources of funds
e Access to inter-bank, market
e Contingency funding plan for crisis situations
e Regular stress testing
e Cushion of liquid assets held
e Consistent analysis using liquidity ratios
e Review of Deposit Mix Concentration.

Such mitigates are monitored by BOD, Finance and Credit Department, Internal Audit
Department.

Credit Risk

A credit risk is the risk of default on a debt that may arise from a borrower failing to make
required payments. In the first resort, the risk is that of the lender and includes lost principal
and interest, disruption to cash flows, and increased collection costs. Factors for the credit
risk include Counterparty Risk, Concentration Risk and Securitization Risk.

The Microfinance has applied following mitigates for management of Credit Risk factors:
¢ Independent and ongoing credit quality review
e Limiting credit exposures
e Problem credit management system
e Diversification of risk asset portfolio among several sectors and sub sectors of the
economy over a large number of customers
e Deposit of borrower in bank, cash margin and additional collateral at individual level
e Proper valuation, storage, maintenance and insurance of collaterals

Such mitigates are monitored by Board of Directors, Risk Management Committee which is
Board Level Committee, Credit Risk Management Department. NRB Inspection team and
Internal Audit Department of the Microfinance

93 | arfifer ufdered, R0we/ 0w ST Tt fadier g fa7., wHid-, FTaver==is



Fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities risk management includes effective portfolio
management by finance department which is monitored by BOD. and other high level, officials.

5.2 Capital Management
The capital management approach of the Microfinance is driven by its desire to maintain a
strong capital base to support the development of its business and to meet the regulatory
capital requirements at all times.

As Capital is the centerpiece of the Microfinance's performance matrix, a sound capital
management forms the very core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the
Microfinance delivers on its objective of maximizing the shareholder's value. The senior
management of the Microfinance is engaged and responsible for prudent capital
management at all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing the
capital base as prescribed by the Central Bank, the Microfinance is comfortable in meeting
the minimum capital requirements and is strongly positioned to meet the performance
benchmarks.

1. Capital Structure and Breakdown of its components
Tier 1 Capital and breakdown of its component is as follows: -
Tier 2 Capital and breakdown of its component is as follows: -
e Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)

Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net)

S.N. | Particulars Gross NPA (Rs.) Loan Loss | Net NPA (Rs.)
Provision (Rs.)
a Substandard 29,787,011 4,221,366 25,565,645
Doubtful 20,965,519 8,713,076 12,252,443
Bad 3,259,946 3,259,946 -
Total 54,012,476 16,194,388 37,818,088
¢ NPA Ratios: -
e Gross NPA to Gross Advance: 2.60%
e Net NPA to Net Advance :1.85%
e Movement of Non- Performance Assets
Particulars Current Year Previous Year Change (%)
Non-Performing Assets 54,012,476 8,289,888 45,722,588
E\lo/o)n-Performlng Assets 2.60% 0.54% 2.07%

Movement in Loan Loss Provision and Interest Suspense:
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Particulars Loan Loss Provision Interest Suspense
Opening Balance 27,225,283 9,835,411
Write Back/off in the years 74,867,286 -
Addition in the year 78,878,937 13,336,289
Balance as on 32 Asar 2079 31,236,934 23,171,701

¢ Details of Subordinated Term Debt
No subordinated Term Debt has been issued

¢ Details of Additional Loan Loss Provision
Additional loan loss provision has not been made during the year.

2. Risk Management Function

Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (ALBSL) is exposed to various types of risks
including credit, market, liquidity, operational, legal, compliance and reputation risks. The
objective of the risk management framework at the Microfinance is to ensure that various
risks are understood, measured and monitored and that the policies and procedures
established to address these risks are strictly adhered to. the Microfinance has set up a strong
control and monitoring environment for comprehensive risk management at all levels of
operation.

Measurement of Risks for Capital Adequacy Purpose:
Under Pillar 1 of the specific NRB guidelines, the Microfinance company currently follows

Simplified Standardized Approach for Credit Risk, Basic Indicator Approach for Operational
Risk and Net Open Position approach for Market risk.

A. Credit Risk

Strategies and Process:

All credit related aspects are governed by Operation Manual of ALBSL. These documents
outline the type of products that can be offered, customer categories, credit approval process
and limits. These documents are approved by the Board of directors.

The Microfinance Company's main emphasis is on SME credit. Different limits of lending
power have been assigned at branch level, department head level and the credit committee
level. Every aspect relating to credit such as procedure, documentation etc. are clearly defined
in the Operation Manual and the Credit Policy of the Microfinance.

Pre-Sanction:

The branch managers have the authority to approve the credit within their permissible limits
after due scrutiny of background of the promoter, nature of business, turnover in the account,
other financial indicators, income, collateral and security Loans above the authority of branch
are recommended to head office for further decision.
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Credit Risk Assessment Process:

Risk Management Department comes out a comprehensive credit risk assessment process
that encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain
credit rating of the borrower. The credit rating process involves assessment of risk emanating
from various sources such as market risk, management risk, environmental risk, financial risk
and security risk taking into consideration as much as 30 sub parameters under each of these
categories. Credit thresholds have been set for forwarding the credit files for risk rating before
they are submitted for approval in the credit committee by the concerned credit units.

Post Sanction Monitoring/ Follow up:

Concerned branch are required to obtain regular information of the business. In case of
revolving loans, the drawing power is checked commensurate with the existing level of stocks
and working capital checked and verified at regular interval.

B. Operation Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people or systems, or from external events. Operational risk is inherent in the Microfinance's
business activities.

The board level committee that undertakes supervision and review of operational risk aspects
are the Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee. The board and the risk committee
review the operational risk level and the material operational id exposure. The Audit
committee supervises audit and compliance related aspects. Internal Audit department on the
other hand carries out audit according to the audit plan and reports findings to the audit
committee.

Risk Arising from breakdown of Information and Operating System:
The Microfinance has implemented centralized software Empower Accounting Software to

ensure the associated operational risks being brought down to an acceptably low level.

To safeguard the probable losses resulting from system failure or natural disaster, the
Microfinance has taken following policies to minimize the risk:

e Backup - Daily back up of all balances are taken at the end of the day, the Microfinance
developing a system of auto back up in the near future.

e Validation of Entry and Password control- There is a system of maker and checker for
entry validation before posting. Access authority for data entry, update, modification
and validation has been given on the basis of levels of staffs.

e Exception Reporting -The system creates exception report as and when required.

Risk Arising from Procedural Lapses and Internal control:
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The company has defined every banking procedure in the Operation Manual related to banking
Transactions. Internal circulars are issued whenever required. Reporting by branches is
regular.

Corporate Governance:
NRB Guidelines with respect to Corporate Governance are duly complied with.

C. Market Risk

a. Investments

Currently MLBSL has not made any investment for trading purpose. The investment in
government securities have been made to hold till maturity. The investment in equity of listed
institutions has been held as available for sale.

b. Foreign Exchange
The company's policy is to maintain the net open position of convertible foreign currency
where exchange rate risk persists in matching position.

5.3 Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities
5.4 Operating Segment Information

5.5 Share options and share based payment
There is no share-based payment made by the Microfinance.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of business
undertaken. The Microfinance company has formal controls and policies for managing legal
claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of loss reasonably
estimated, the microfinance makes adjustment to account for adverse effect which the claims
may have on its financial standing Contingent liabilities on other matters have already been
disclosed in notes 4.28.

5.7 Related party disclosures
The related parties of the Microfinance which meets the definition of related parties as defined
in "NAS 24 Related Parties Disclosure" are as follows:

i. Key Management Personnel (KMP)

The key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility of
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly including any
director. The key management of the Microfinance includes members of its board of Director,
Act. Chief Executive Officer, and other higher-level employee of the Microfinance The name of
the key management personnel who were holding various positions in the office during the
year were as follows:
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Name of KMP Post
Baburam Thapa Chairman
Bhoj Raj Bhattarai Director
Bharati Kumari Pathak Director
Prabin Jha Director
Keshav Thapa Independent Director

Rosan Kumar Adhikari

Act. Chief Executive Officer

Chandan Kumar Sardar

Deputy Manager

Yogendra Prasad Prasai

Deputy Manager

The members at Board of Directors are entitled for meeting allowances. Salary and
allowances are provided to Chief Executive Officer and other member of Key Management
Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief Executive Officer is based on the
contract entered by the Microfinance with him whereas compensation paid to other member
of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions made by management time to
time in this regard. In addition to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle
facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan, termination benefits are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel (directors only) Were
as follows:

Particulars
Meeting Fee

Current Year (NPR)
575,500

The details relating to compensation paid to key management personnel other than directors
were as follows:

Key Management Personnel Basic Allowances Bonus & o ther Total
Salary Benefits (NPR)
Rosan Kumar Adhikari 777,600 527,872 265,659 1,571,131
Chandan Kumar Sardar 439,200 312,000 201,607 952,807
Yogendra Prasad Prasai 268,233 190,548 52,474 511,255

5.8 Merger and acquisition

No any activities of merger and acquisition has incurred during this fiscal year.

5.9 Additional Disclosure of Non-consolidated entities

Since, the Microfinance company does not have any subsidiaries, there are no such non-
consolidated entities.

5.10Events after reporting date.
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